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Questions and Answers | Updated 08/20/2025 

1. Does the affirmative marketing plan get approved ahead of time or submitted with the 
application? 

a. Correction to the question – it is in relation to the Affirmative Action Plan, not in relation 
to marketing. 

b. The Affirmative Action Plan is submitted after award. When the contract is being signed, 
there will be a section to state if you already have an Affirmative Action Plan on file with 
the City of Madison, or if you do not, that you will file one within 30 days of the contract 
execution  

c. If in relation to the Affirmative marketing plan (Attachment B of the RFP), a draft 
submission should be included with the application. The final version of the AMP would 
be part of the contract requirements, should the applicant be selected and awarded.  

2. Do the affirmative action plan requirements come before of after award of funds? 
a. After award of funds. 

3. Can you explain each of the tabs in the budget workbook? 
a. Applicants should submit one workbook that includes all of the proposals they are 

applying for.  
• Development projects → Complete all purple tabs. 

o Tab 2 – “Dev Budget”: Enter all project costs here. This tab can 
accommodate multiple development proposals. 

o Tab 3 – “Summary-Dev”: Provides a summary of the development 
budgets and includes a quick affordability analysis for the end buyer. 

• Programs and services → Complete all green tabs. Enter annual costs 
associated with running the program.  

o Tabs “Program A” to “Program C”: Each tab represents a separate 
program proposal. 

o Tabs “AppIV-Summ” and “AppIV-PgExp”: Summarizes the program 
proposal budgets. 

4. When are developments required to attend a DAT meeting? Can you go to more than one if 
needed? Can you clarify pre-application or post-application? What if you have already 
attended a DAT meeting prior to the release of the RFP regarding the proposal? 

a. Developments with 4 or more units are required to attend a DAT meeting prior to 
submission. If you have attended a DAT meeting prior to the release of the RFP, related 
to the proposal you are requesting funding for, you can count that towards fulfilling your 
requirement. Although not required, an applicant can request to attend more DAT 
meetings, if scheduling allows.  
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5. When a proposal is awarded, is the subsidy provided on the front end, or is it a 
reimbursement process? 

a. Funding is usually provided as reimbursements or draws: 
i. New construction → Held in escrow by title company; draws released with 

invoices and City approval. 
1. This cycle → 10% of City funding will be held back until project 

completion and final report are submitted. 
ii. Acquisition-Rehabilitation  → Funds needed for site acquisition will be wired by 

time of closing. Any work completed would be reimbursed as draws are 
submitted and required documentation is provided.  

Note that subsidy is provided after an awardee has completed all due diligence items 
requested of them and a contract/loan agreement has been executed between the parties. 

6. Is the amount of funding for homebuyer education different than in prior years? 
a. Yes, during the 2022 cycle, the City of Madison had funding available to support 

targeted neighborhood homebuyer education. This was not a continuous source of 
funding and has since been spent. 

7. Can a project mix and match HOME and AHF? 
a. Yes, for development proposals, an applicant may be awarded a mixture of funding 

sources. The stricter rules and regulations would apply in those cases.  
8. Is the City certain that HOME funds will be available in the future? 

a. The City of Madison will continue to submit required plans and reports to ensure 
compliance with HUD’s requirements. But we cannot provide certainty that federal 
funds will be available in the future. 

9. How are goals set and determined between M/W/DBE and SBE? What does the 
certification look like? 

a. Goals are determined based on who the funding is coming from (City of Madison versus 
Housing and Urban Development), as each agency has their own rules, regulations, and 
program goals for business development and support. 

b. Goals are set on a project by project bases based on the current market availability and 
the type of work being done on the project. 

c. City of Madison funded projects over $200,000 and with 4 or more units will have Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE) goals set. 

d. HUD funded projects over $200,000 will have Minority, Women, and Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (MWDBE) goals set. 

e. HUD funded projects under $200,000 will not have goals set, but will need to report 
MWDBE usage.  

f. Definitions:  
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i. Small Business Enterprise - an independently owned and controlled business 
with annual gross receipts of $4 million or less when averaged over the past 
three years. And the majority owner has a personal net worth maximum of $1.32 
million dollars. 

ii. Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) - an independent business 51% or more 
owned and controlled by racial/ethnic affirmative action group members. 

iii. Woman Business Enterprise (WBE) - an independent business 51% or more 
owned and controlled by women. 

iv. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) - an independent business 51% or 
more owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged 
individuals. Size restrictions as regulated by the U.S. Small Business 
Administration in 13 CFR apply. 

g. Certification process – firms fill out an application and compile supporting documents, 
and then turn those in to the Department of Civil Rights. The application and supporting 
documents are reviewed by the Department of Civil Rights. The Department of Civil 
Rights conducts an informational interview with the firm. The Department of Civil Rights 
makes a certification decision.  

i. Applications - https://www.cityofmadison.com/civil-rights/contract-
compliance/targeted-business-enterprise-programs/applications  

ii. Certification process overview - www.cityofmadison.com/civil-
rights/documents/Steps_to_TBE_Certification.pdf 

10. Is there a list of programs/agencies and amounts that are currently being funded in the 
"Homebuyer Assistance," "Minor Home Repair," and "Homebuyer Education" categories? 

a. A list of awarded contracts can be found here: 
https://www.cityofmadison.com/dpced/community-development/contracts-funding  

11. If an agency that is a CHDO applied jointly with another developer that is not a CHDO, is 
that still considered an application by a CHDO? 

a. The lead applicant would have to be the CHDO and they would have to be the recipient 
of the HOME set aside funds ($1 million available in HOME CHDO set aside funding 
through this RFP).  

12. Is there a location where you can check CHDO status? 
a. There is not an active webpage where an applicant can check their current CHDO 

status. Applicant should contact RFP lead point of contact to check on their CHDO 
status. 

13. On slide 19 of the presentation, can you please elaborate on the structure of the loan? In 
the example $80k is repaid to the City, and $80k is passed onto the buyer. Please explain.  

a. The example shown applies to non-permanent affordability development proposals. 
Permanent affordability proposals have different financing terms and may look very 

https://www.cityofmadison.com/civil-rights/contract-compliance/targeted-business-enterprise-programs/applications
https://www.cityofmadison.com/civil-rights/contract-compliance/targeted-business-enterprise-programs/applications
http://www.cityofmadison.com/civil-rights/documents/Steps_to_TBE_Certification.pdf
http://www.cityofmadison.com/civil-rights/documents/Steps_to_TBE_Certification.pdf
https://www.cityofmadison.com/dpced/community-development/contracts-funding
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different when resold to the end buyer; for that reason, a resale example was not 
provided. 
For non-permanent proposals, the financing works in three steps: 

i. Developer Subsidy Award – The City’s Community Development Division (CDD) 
provides a subsidy to the developer. This subsidy is made up of: 

1. Loan Portion (up to 80%) – A 0% interest capital loan to cover eligible 
capital costs. 

2. Grant Portion (up to 20%) – A grant to cover eligible soft costs, including 
the developer fee. 

ii. Loan Repayment Requirement – The loan portion of the Developer Subsidy 
must be repaid to the City at the time the home is sold to the end buyer.  

iii. Pass-Through to Buyer – Instead of repaying the entire loan at closing, the 
developer may “pass through” a portion of the loan to the buyer to close the 
affordability gap. This pass-through is provided to the buyer as a 0% interest, 
long-term deferred loan with a shared appreciation provision. 

1. The portion of the loan passed to the buyer becomes the buyer’s 
obligation to the City. 

2. The remaining loan balance (not passed to the buyer) is repaid by the 
developer to the City at closing. 

3. In the example referenced, $80,000 of the Developer Subsidy loan is 
repaid by the developer at closing, and $80,000 is passed through to the 
buyer in the form of a deferred loan with shared appreciation. 

14. In the non-permanent development example, who determines the sales price – the City or 
the developer? Is there guidance on how to set the sale price? 

a. In all development proposals, the developer would determine the sales price. Part of 
the review and scoring of proposals is to ensure that the end buyer is able to afford and 
sustain the home being developed. The developer, at time of transfer of sale to the 
homebuyer, will work with CDD and is able to use the developer subsidy as pass 
through assistance to make the home affordable to the end buyer (and other sources of 
funding secured and leveraged). The buyer will have to meet eligibility/compliance 
income (be at or below 80% Area Median Income), secure a first mortgage, and meet 
CDD’s “Subrecipient Guide for Homeownership Developers and Subrecipients” 
underwriting standards, which can be found here: 
https://www.cityofmadison.com/dpced/community-development/contracts-
funding/contract-compliance 

15. If I currently have lots that I own, can I propose to build on them using this criteria to get 
funds to help? 

https://www.cityofmadison.com/dpced/community-development/contracts-funding/contract-compliance
https://www.cityofmadison.com/dpced/community-development/contracts-funding/contract-compliance
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a. Yes, you would apply under the new construction category. This category requires that 
you have site control to be eligible to apply. 

16. Can we find the end buyer that meets this criteria? Or do you guys have the buyers lined 
up already? 

a. The developer is responsible for finding the buyer, the City does not retain a list of 
qualified buyers. This could be an opportunity to connect with other homeownership 
programs in the region that may have a pipeline of homebuyers.  

17. Could funding be awarded to new construction single-family projects that are already 
underway, or will be underway very soon? Assuming they otherwise meet the criteria 
outlined in the RFP. 

a.  If construction is underway or will take place before the RFP process is concluded, it is 
not an eligible activity under this RFP.   

18. Our organization has received funding from the Community Development Division before 
and have not registered as lobbyist in the past, do we have to? 

a. The Madison General Ordinance 2.40 has been in place for years and did apply to 
previous applications. CDD must disclose that it is a requirement. If an agency fails to 
register it may be addressed as an issue if said agency registers for public comment at 
City meetings without disclosing their financial investment request from the City.  


